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KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. SCV & CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
819, Laxmi Deep Building, 8-41, Panchsheel Enclawve,
Laxmi Nagar District Center, New Delhi- 110017,

New Delhi-110092.

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Unaudited Standalone Financial Re sults for
the quarter and nine months period ended 31 December 2024 of REC Limited pursuant
to the Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

The Board of Directors,
REC Limited

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodi Road,

New Delhi -~ 110003

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financial
results of REC Limited (“the Company”) for the quarter and nine months period
ended 31* December 2024 ("the Statement"), being submitted by the Company
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with
Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”)

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and
approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian
Accounting Standard - 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act”) and read
with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Our responsibility is to issue a conclusion on the Statement based

on our review.,
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3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on
Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, This standard requires that we plan and perform
the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of
material misstatement. A review of interim financial information consists of making
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible tor financial and accounting matters and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with standards on auditing and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware
of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

4, Based on our review conducted as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement of
unaudited standalone financial results, prepared In accordance with recognition
and measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as amended, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in
terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEB|
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended,
Including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material

misstatement,

For M/s Kailash Chand Jain & Co. For M/s SCV & Co, LLP,

Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants,

ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/N500089
Name - Saurabh Chouhan Name — Abhinav Khosla w
Designation: Partner Designation: Partner

Membership Number: 167453 Membership Number: 087010

UDIN: 25167453BMLKPX7470 UDIN: 25087010BMMLPK2514

Place: Delhi

Date: February 06, 2025



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. SCV & CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
819, Laxmi Deep Building, B-41, Panchsheel Enclave,
Laxmi Nagar District Center, New Delhi- 110017.

New Delhi-110092.

Independent Auditor’s Review Report on the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the
quarter and nine months period ended 31" December 2024 of REC Limited pursuant to the
Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

The Board of Directors,
REC Limited

Core-1V, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodi Road,

New Delhi - 110003

1. We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial
results of REC Limited {“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (the parent company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group®) for the quarter and nine months
period ended 31" December 2024 ("the Statement”), being submitted by the Parent
Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with
Regulation 63|2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations”).

2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Parent Company’s Management and
approved by the Parent Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian Accounting
Standard - 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting” ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) and read with relevant rules issued
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our réesponsibility




3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review of
interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with standards on auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion,

We also performed procedures In accordance with the Circular No,
CIR/CFD/CMD1/44/2019 dated March 29, 2019 issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33{8)
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2015, as
amended, to the extent applicable,

4. The statement includes result of following entities :

1. Parent Company:
REC Limited

2. subsidiary:
REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited

5. Basad on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3
above and based on the consideration of the review report of other auditor referred to
in Paragraph 6 befow, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying Statement of unaudited consolidated financial results, prepared in
accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, as
amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the Information required to be disclosed
in terms of Regulation 33 and Regulation 52 read with Regulation 63(2) of the SES8|
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended,
including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement,




Other matters

6. We did not review the interim financial results of the subsidiary included in the
consolidated unaudited financial results, whose interim financial results reflect total
revenue of X 137.55 Crore and R357.27 crores, total net profit after tax of 68.08 crores
and T 169.39 crores and total comprehensive income of X 68.08 crores and T 169.39
crares for the quarter ended 31" December 2024 and nine months period ended 31"
December 2024 respectively, as considered in the consolidated unaudited financlal
results. These interim financal results have been reviewed by other auditor whose Report
has been furnished to us by the Management and our conclusion on the Statement, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary is
based solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures performed by us as
stated in paragraph 3 above.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

For M/s Kailash Chand Jain & Co. For M/s SCV & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants,
ICAl Firm Registration: 112318W ICAI Firm Registration:000235N/N500089

Mol

Name - Saurabh Chouhan Name - Abhinav Khosla
Designation: Partner - Designation: Partner
Membership Number: 167453 Membership Number: 087010
UDIN: 25167453BMLKPY8693 UDIN: 25087010BMMLPL2967
Place: Delhi

Date: February 06, 2025
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Annexure C

Disclosure in compliance with Regulation 52(7) & 52(7A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the quarter ended 31" December 2024

A. Statement of utilization of issue proceeds:

=g

2 in Crores
Mode of Fund Sl Yo
Raising thl’hen spenfy‘
i Typeof p e purpose o
Publi ate of Any I
i o RS instru st Amount | Funds | deviati for which the | Remarks,
the Issuer ISIN issues/ Private oz ” s gy if any
placement) ment funds Raised utilized | (yes/ No) funds were
utilized
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

REC Limited | INEO20B08FJ3* g NCD |03-10-2024| 271250 | 2,71250 NO NA

Placement
REC Limited| INEO20BO8FK1 | | "vate NCD 08112024 300000 | 300000 |  NO NA

Placement
REC Limited | INE020B08FLO Private NCD |08-11-2024| 290100 | 260100 NO NA

. Placement

REC Limited | INEO20BOBFM7 | 1 1vafe NCD [19-12:2024| 162000 | 162000 | NO NA

Placement
REC Limited | INEO20B0BFK1 | _FMivate NCD |18-12.2004| 57500 | s75.00 NO NA

Placement

| . Total 10,808.50 | 10,808.50
*Zero-coupon bond with face value of 2 5000 crore issued at a discounted value of 2 2712.50 crore,
B. Statement of deviation/ variation in use of Issue proceeds:
| Particulars Remarks '
Name of listed entity #Z ' ha ,
oxk. +"/i4 ’x\f& \ REC LIMITED

Mode of fund raising 4 X Publicissuel Private placemezf{”';_*?‘l\\\

1] ¥
| )
- |




Particulars Remarks

Type of instrument Non-convertible Securities
Date of raising funds Please refer Col. 5 above table
Amount raised % 10,808.50 crores

Report filed for quarter ended 31-12-2024

Is there a deviation/ variation in use of funds raised? No

Whether any approval is required to vary the objects of the issue stated in the prospectus/ offer

document?

If ves, details of the approval so required?

Date of approval NA

Explanation for the deviation/ variation

Comments of the audit committee after review

Comments of the auditors, if any

Obijects for which funds have been raised and where there has been a deviation/ variation, in the following table:

Original | Modified = Original Modified Funds | Amount of deviation/ variation for the quarter  Remarks, if
object object, if allocation allocation, if = utilised according to applicable object any
any any (2 in Crores and in %)
NA

“Deviation could mean:

a. Deviation in the objects or purposes for which the funds have been raised.
b. Deviation in the amount of funds actually utilized as against what was originally disclosed.




KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO. SCV & CO. LLP.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
819, Laxmi Deep Building, B-41, Panchsheel Enclave,
Laxmi Nagar District Center, New Delhi- 110017,

New Delhi-110092,

Review Report on Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements for the period 1% April
2024 to 317 December 2024 of REC Limited.

To,

The Board of Directors,
REC Limited

Core-1V, SCOPE Complex,
7, Lodi Road,

New Delhi - 110003

We have reviewed the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements of REC
Limited (‘the Company’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" December 2024, and the related
Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months period ended 317 December
2024 and a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter referred as "Special Purpose
Standalone Interim Financial Statements”®) as required by Indian Accounting Standard 34 ‘Interim
Financial Reporting’ ("Ind AS 34%).

Management’s Responsibility for the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements,

These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared
in all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian
Accounting Standard-34 “Interim Financial Reporting' (*Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. These Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements have been
prepared solely for the purpose of inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising
programmes of the Company and its Holding Company {*Power Finance Corporation Limited”).

Scope of review

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements In
accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements are free of material
misstatement, A review of interim financlal information consists of making Inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financlal and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion,




Conclusion

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the accompanying Special Purpose Standalone Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian
Accounting Standard 34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This report is intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of financial
information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume
any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

For M/s Kailash Chand Jain & Co. For M/s SCV & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants, Chartered Accountants,
ICAI Firm Registration: 112318W ICAI Firm mmuon:ooozssnlusoom
W | \ i
VMHW wl
Name - Saurabh Chouhan Name — Abhinav Khosla
Designation: Partner Designation: Partner
Membership Number: 167453 Membership Number: 087010
UDIN: 25167453BMLKP29168 UDIN: 25087010BMMLPM3857

Date: February 06, 2025
Piace: Delhi



KAILASH CHAND JAIN & CO, SCV & CO., P

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

819, Laxmi Deep Building, B-41, Panchsheel Enclave,

Laxmi Nagar District Center, New Delhi- 110017,

New Delhi-110092.

Review Report on Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the period 1% April 2024 to
31% December 2024 of REC Umited.

To,

The Board of Directors,

REC Limited

Core-IV, SCOPE Complex,

7. Lodi Road,

New Delhi - 110003

We have reviewed the accomganying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Staterments of REC Limited
{‘the Company' or ‘the Parent Company’} and its subsidiary (the parent company and its subsidiary together
referrad to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, and the
related Statement of Consolldated Profit and Loss (Including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine
months period ended 31 December 2024 and a summary of material accounting policies (together hereinafter
referred as “Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements®) as required by Indian Accounting
Standard-34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ (“Ind AS 34°).

Managemant’s Responsibllity for the Special Purpose Consolldated Interim Financial Statements.

These Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the Parent
Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company, has been prepared in all
material respects, In accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting
Standard-34 ‘Interim Financial Reporting” (“Ind AS 34%) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
These Spedial Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared solely for the purpose of
inclusion of Financial information in respect of fund-raising programmes of the Company and its Holding
Company (“Power Finance Corporation Limited”).

Scope of review

We conducted our review of the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in accordance with
the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard
requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Special Purpose
Consolidated Interim Financlal Statements are free of material misstatement. A review of interim financial
Information consists of making Inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and conseguently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do

not express an audit opinion.




Conclusion

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of Indian Accounting Standard 34
"Interim Financial Reporting’ (“Ind AS 34") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
refevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in Indla.

Other Matters

We did not review the Interim financial statement of the subsidiary inchuded in the Special Purpose
Consclidated Interim Financial Statements, whase interim financial reflect total assets of € 1,171.44
crores, 1otal revenue of R 357.27 crores, total net profit after tax of T 16939 crores and total
comprehensive income of % 189.39 crores for the nine months pertod ended 31% December 2024 and
cash inflows{net) of ® 4.45 crores for the nine months period ended 31" December 2024, 3¢ considered
in the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. These interim financial statements
have been reviewed by other auditor whose Report has been furniched to us by the Management and
our conclusion on the Statéement, in 5o far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures Included in
respect of the subsidiary Is based solely on the Report of the other auditor and the procedures
performed by us as stated In ‘Scope of Review' paragraph above,

Our conclusion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 15 not modified in
respect of the matter as stated above.

This report is Intended solely for the use of the Company for the purpose of inclusion of financlal mformation in
respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding Company thereto and should not be used
by any other person or for any other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this repart is shown or into whose hands it may come save where

expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

For M/s Kailash Chand Jain & Co. For M/s SCV & Co. LLP.
Chartered Accountants,
ICAI Firm Reglstration:000235N/NS00089

UDIN: 25167453BMLKQA7541 UDIN: 250870108MMLPN2061

Date: Februory 06, 2025
Place: Delhi
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REC Limited

Registered Otfice - Care-d, SOOME Compiex. 7, Lodhi Rowd, New Deldi - 110063, CIN: LAOT01DLSSSCOIME0RS
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 3wt December 2024
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REC Limited

Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Comptex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 170803, CIN: L42101DL1963COL0S 0%

(L Caeen)

|[Particulars

Fenod ended 31-12-20124

V'enod ended 31-12.2023

A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities -
Net Profi before Tax
Adjustments for:
1. Loss/ {Gain) on derscogretion of Peopenty, Plart and Equpment (061)
2 Loss/{Galn) on derscognotion of Assets held foe sale (net]
3 Deproctation & Amortization
4 Impairment losses on Finansial instruments
5. Loss/ {Gain) co Falr Value Ovanges (nel)
& Effective ntenest Rase (EIR) in respect of Loan Assets and Bosronengy
7. inzerest on Commercial Paper
. Interest Accrued on Zero Coupon Bonds
9. Unrealised Foreign Exchange Translation Loss! (Gaan)
10 Inberest on Investmends
ng Profitf {Loss) before Changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities

nflaw ( (Outfiow) on account of ;
. Loan Assxis
2. Derivatrves
3. Other Financial and Non- Fimandial Assely
4. Other Pinancial and Nooe Financial Lisbilities & Provisions

ash flow fram Operations
1. Income Tax Paid (ecluding TS}

et Cash Flow froen Operabing Activities
B, Cark Flow from [pvesting Activities
1. Sale of Propesty, [lant & Equipanent
2 Sale of assets held for sake
3. Inveshment in Progarty, Plas fe Eguipnent (gl CWIP & Capital Advances)
4. Irvestment in Intangible Azzets (including Intangitle assets under development &

pital Advanced)
5. Finance Costs Capitalisad
6 Salwf (Investmet) in Equily Shares
7. Redemphon/ (Investment) irs High Quakity Liquid Assees (HQLAS) (ret)
& Redempilon/ (Investment) in Dbt Secusitier other Suas HOLAS tnet)

Cask Flow from Investing Activities
C. Cash Flow fram Fimancing Activities
1, lssue/ (Redemption) of Rupes Dbt Secuxities {ret)
2. tssuef (Redempsion) of Comesercial Paper {nel)
3. Raisung/ | Repayments) of Rupee Term Loana) WCIDE. froes Bands! Fls (net )
4 Raising/ {Bepagments) of Foretgn Currency Debt Secunties and Barrow ings (net)
§ Rawing/ {Redemption) of Subordinated Liasilsties (net)
& Payment ol Devidend oo Equity Shases
7. Repaymni towards Lease Linbility
Cash flow from Financing Activities
t Increane! (Decrrase) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
& Cashs Equivalunts as 1 the begiown ing of the period

asls & Cash Eupaivalents as at the end of the period

AT

363
16.03)
175y

5132
(les 84)
15043

134
(1,540 66)
(1359
1301669

(56,249.49
(94 64)
(117990
476436
(976117
(2,107.31)

(3 98)
67
151.55

([@.as)
{200

1142828
35115
2720738

(9.064.36)
A57T7 N

(3,291.53)

(42450.38)

(L,32845)

1L632.47

3™
(3
1774
{6205
33673
777
10047

1592.4)
{2532
1,144.86

(63,082 45
386.65
(744.41)
350) w4
(4872377
(2.46331)

G
161
(1737

(0.32)

au
{498,00)
(482,59

20978 51
284937
11,286.57
HHEG ya
590,00
2,857.0%)
0.41)

(51,185.09

993.28)




REC Limited
Repstered Office - Cared, SCOPE Comples, 7, Ludhs Koad, New Orlhi - 150005, CIN: LIMII0LIMACOIIMS
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€ Other Equity
{8 in Crern.
Parseulsrs Kewrves & Serplen TVOCI. | Efiectve Poetion | Coats ad t"'.u_c_“
Special | Reserre tor [ Stanuary Reverve w|  Securiiien Forelgs Caveri Retamed Equity of Cash Mo Matging
Reservee Radamt A5IC of Reserve Freminm Cunwecy Resarve Bamings | inbrnemenns edgn Ieseree
crested W'y Soavitsl | Bk of Indla A, Advown| Marwary
IR0 (vilh of | debis uh e heo
the Inceme | 35170 ik of Traenlation
TaxAct, 191 | the brcome Didferency
Taw Act, 1001 Ascoant
Baluner an af 330 Marth D003 VTN - s LR i TYLM 197884 e aiam o 0,90 S4.am 06
Pardit 201 e period oo M
Rememaremer of Delnvnd Benefil Mans e of taves) % e
Racogettion Srugh Oer Comgrrhonsne Innme (e of taes) %57 mrj 38 mua.r
ota] Comprehensivy Incma for e peniod . . . - - . TaoeAY W T L 0
rorrdiorsed 1of {[rom) Retaned Kammge 13853 0 PRk W
renderred 1o Conerdl Rowrse .
tlon i gand (lesw) on sl eusaguaianeet o o) Sn
aguty trelrument (et of vy
Cumony Tranduisn gany fms] on Bung e 1h22Y I3
monetary fers durmg Hhw perisd
Amertmation dormyg he petesd Y428 1% %
[Coupen pas on | wal Ewtirely Equity W Notare
Prrpansal Detd b o) {Ne of T
12083 e oL M . “n - S0 L - . M
CRIRs ARTW
. = N - - - D457, . . {1857
AT 394.33 008 4T () [ L B X $9.54) 4188 (130555 A1.908 47




i Conesl
Pacticatans Teserves b Svrphm IVOCH | Efloctve Partian | Costrod Total
Specinl | Reserve for F-,nm.h Securiben | Fortign | Geoerl | Aetaied Benily | sfCuinTiow | Medging
Reserey Rad and SSAC of Reseave | Pramiurns | Cumency Faseree Earsings | Testremends Medges Teserve
reaed o deubitul | Mank of il An, | Aceouni Monetary
AN v of | debéc 1M T
Ihe Bncome | 360 Kviial of Towvslation
Tax Act, 1961 | the Incame Difleserwe
Tas Acl 1) Axcount
[Balance as ot S2h March 2006 Mo “wrn WwEKaw 15s w7s S X ) Nwiw Ll (LA AN Msnn
Trof for e pervod nearsn 1tarm
rerrreat of Defined Penefe Plats (net of ees| ne LL)
Rt en Theagh Ofser Covmpreders noveme et of Lanes] [ Rl L™ (LR 1Y) Helay
atal Tomprehenive Income far the period . - . o . . nanw IR Loy mu.m’ neess
rarsiorsed iof (fiom ) Retaned Exvings pE LAV M b5, L N RN F
10 Camern Konarve . - .
Hecpeafiraton ol gunl floe) o ol evinguihmen:
PYOCT eqaity ssinument (et of taees)
Foretgn Curreney  Treralaton ganl (s g Jerm . B b
mosstory deme durng fre period
Ameiiation durieg e periond [ e
Covpen poy oo b Entiredy Fauity o N
(g 4 Outrl In 1 Nt of Laser?
286204 Bin 13%% 0o e Qj
Berds 91
Tranascrson with owaess , v . - - - : s 13,29
[Balence a5 a1 3154 December 2004 Rwar| s vans| L WAL 172844 1. 541 s e |
Vivek Kumar Dewangan
Place Owlhi Chalrman & Managing Dizechr
Dwir: 06 Fehruary 205 DIN -t




REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003
CIN: L40101DL1969G 01005095

Notes to Accounts

Company Overview

REC Limited (“REC" or the “Company") was incorporated in the year 1969. The Company s d omiciled
in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal place of business at Core4,
SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India. The books of accounts are maintained at the
Corporate Office situated at Plot no. I-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana, in addition to the registered
office of the Company. The Company has offices spread across the country, mainly in the State Capitals
and one training center at Hyderabad.

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance across the
power sector value chain and is & Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-
Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Being an NBFC, the
company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India,

The company has been accorded with the status of a ‘Maharatna® Central Public Sector Enterprise by
the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance.

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the prnncpal products of REC are
interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and
Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure, Duning FY 2022-23, REC has also diversified into
the Non-Power Infrastructure sector comprising Roads & Expressways, Metro Rail, Airports, IT
Communication, Social and Commercial Infrastructure (Educational Institution, Hospitals), Ports and
Electro-Mechanical (E&M) works in respect of various other sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc.

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Further, various debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges

Basis of Preparation

These Special Purpose Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose of inclusion
of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the Company and its Holding
Company and complies with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including those issued by RBL
These financial statements for the period ended 31st December 2024 were authorized and approved by
the Board of Directors on 06th February 2025.
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Material Accounting Policies
The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the financial statements are as given helow:

Basis of Preparation and Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis following accrual sysiem of
accounting on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are

measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies, These policies have been applicd
consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee {'INR’) which is also the functional curency of

the Company.

Income recognition

Interest ineome

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs
and expenses of REC (if) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, if any (iii) overdue interest
including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for
credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the
complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including
interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTS)/ Insolvency and Bankruptey Code
(IBC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery
thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), Le. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financlal assets.

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on
an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately
under the head interest income.

As & matter of prudence, income on credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or
on accrual basis when expected realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest
amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the

corresponding Interest income.

Income from Government schemes
Income of agency fee on Govemment schemes is recognized on the basis of the services rendered and
amount of fee sanctioned by the Ministry of Power.

Dividend income
Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on
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Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established
only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised
separately under the head ‘Dividend Income’.

Resital lncome on hrvesiment Property
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Other services
Fees/ charges on loan asséts, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on
accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Company in the year of receipt.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurred in connection with the

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction
of a qualifying asset, tll the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended use, are
capitalized. A qualifying asset is one thal necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its
intended use,

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the
effective interest rate method.

Eamings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity

shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions mnd balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and the re-
measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in
the financial statements before 1 April 2018, such gains and losses are accumulated in a “Foreign
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of
such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date).




3.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Recogmfion and initial nieasurenent

Land
Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined,

related carrying amounts are not amortized.
Land also Includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as
finance lease and is amortized over the lease term.

Other Tangible assets

PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the Jocation and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Company’s management,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company beyond one year, Mamtenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurentent (depreciation method, useful lives, residual valie, and impainment)

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assels as
prescribed under Part 'C’ of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use
for more than 15 days. Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs 5,000/~ is provided «
100%.

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

De-recognition

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work-in-Progress

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress,” The
cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, Any trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE
which are cutstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under 'Capital Advances.”
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Investment property

Recogmition and measurement
Investment property are properties held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any, The depreciation is charged on straight-line method over the
useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Derecognition

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recogrused in

profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Reclassification tolfrom investment property

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers
between investment property and owner-occupied property do not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure

purposes.

Fair value disclosure

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the relevant location and category of the investment property being valued,

Intangible assets

Recognition and nhal measurenvent

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable that the
future economic benefits attnbutable to the assets will flow to the company.

Subsequent measurentent (amortization method, useful hives and residual value)

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives, and a possible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date, Changes, it any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the
useful life of intangible assets to be five years.

Intangible Assets under Development

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carried as
‘Intangible assets under development’ &l they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the
acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding ot the balance sheet date are

classified undler ‘Capital Advances'.

Derecognition of Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is derecognized on dispesal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses anising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
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difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Lease accounting:
Right-oi-use asset and related lease Kability in connection with all former operating leases arc

recognised except for those identified as short-term or low-value lease

An assessment at contract inception is made whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is
defined as “a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration”.

To apply this definition, the contract is assessed for three key evaluations which are whether:
- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available
- right to obtain substantially ail of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract
- night to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use and right to direct ‘how
and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, a right-of-use assel and a lease liability is recognized on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the
lease lLability, any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date
(net of any incentives received),

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
carlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, The night-of-use
asset is also assessed for impairment when such indicators exist,

At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicil in the lease if that rate is readily available
or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be
exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the lisbility will be reduced for payments made and increased for
interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use
asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.
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Assets held for sale
Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through o

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is considerncd
as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Company; are available lor
immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price and thie sale has
been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such asscts are
measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and are not
depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale,

Financial Instruments
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

ltability or equity instrument of another entity.

Tnitial recogmition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured
initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described

below.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories

upon initial recognition;

«  Amortized cost

= Finangal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

* Investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures (carried at cost in accordance with
Ind AS 27)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOC] are subject to review for impairment at least
at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to each
category of financial assets, which are described below,

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the

following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the pnincipal amount outstanding.




Modification of cash flotes

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the
renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition of that financial asset, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial ssset and recognizes a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present
value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the mudified
financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

Financial assels at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVIPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortized cost

classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative finandal instruments also fall into this
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge
accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or
losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by
reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is o compenent of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise
would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange
rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of 2 non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to
the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all hest contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets at FVOC]

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value. An equity investment
classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) and reported within the FVOCI reserve within
equity, except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such
gains and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment.
However, the Company may transfer the same within equity,

De-recoguition of financial assets
De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan 1o a customer, when the terms and




difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has it
already been recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized (i.¢. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights
to receive the cash fMows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset ond
substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. The Company also derecognizes the financial
asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial habilitics

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at
fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All host contracts which are in nature of a
financial liability and separated from embedded derivative are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.,

Derecognation of financial liabulities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expires. When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing habibity are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original Liability and the recognition of a
new liability, The difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognized in the statement of profit

or loss,

Hedge accounting

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements:

= there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument

- the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same ag that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is
effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in
equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equily to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification
adjustment within other comprehensive income.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship, in accordance with the Company’s risk management objective and strategies. The
documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk{s)
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being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness
requirements.

Fair Value Hedges

In line with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of
Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the hedged ilem attributable to the risk hedged s
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amount of the
hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging insteument
ceases to exist, If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised Immediately
in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loan assels
The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

¢ Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date.

¢ Stage 2 includes Joan assets that have had a significant increase In credit risk since initial recognition
but that do not have objective evidence of impairment.

« Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assels and lifetime ECL
for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets, ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default
and Loss Given Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its
cbligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company’s expectation of loss given that a default
oceurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be
lost post recoveries in case of a default.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest
accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD
and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

Financial assets other than Loans

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-menth expected
credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses,

To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as
at the balance sheet date with the nisk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. The Company also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
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without undue cost or effort that is indicative of significant increases in credit nsk since mitial
recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not Increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the

balance sheet date.

Write-offs
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their cntirety only when the Company has stopped

pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority.

A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to
financial assets written off/ may assign / sell loan exposure to ARC / Bank / a financial institution for a

negotiated consideration.

Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities are recorded in statement of profit and
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments (original maturity less than three months) that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recogmzed as changes in
equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors
respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are
recognized in the period when such payments are authorized for payment by the Company.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are
restated,

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OC] or
directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adlustmcms to tax
payable in respect of previous years, D
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Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrving amounts of assels and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
income. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Company
and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected 1o
apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting perod. Deferred lax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the

same tax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Changes in deforred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in
profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to ocour within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-
monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis,

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
plans as under:

Defined conlribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions in respect of
the employees into a separate fund. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the
Company towards defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the
contributions relate.

Defined benefit plan
The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, Post Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF), Provident

Fund (PF) and Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit
plans covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will
receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service, final salary, and other
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defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company, even if plan assets
for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside.

The Company’s obligation towards defined benefit plans is determinad using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The
liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of
the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan sty
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Other long-term employee benefits:
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one-
year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method,

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuanal assumptions are
charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined,

Loan to employees at concessional rate

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction
value is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on 2 straight-line basis over the
expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the
unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected
remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company

and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure trequired to settle the present obligation, based

on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties

associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time

value of moncy is material.

A contingent liability is disclosed for:

+  Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or

+  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot
be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no liability is recognized or disclosure is made,
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Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party conceming
the obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may nt
exceed the amount of the related provision,

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the
related asset is disclosed.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account 3 market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in i1s highest and
best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are

categorized within the lair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

material to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) morket prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

« Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

s Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and labilities that are recognized in the financial statements regularly, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonization (based on the lowest level inpul that is material to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Business Combination under Cammon Control

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory’,

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using
the pooling of interest method as follows:

e The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

e No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are made only to harmonise material accounting policies.

« The financial information in the finandal statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if
the business combmation has occurred from the beginning of the preceding penod in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination

The balance of the relained eamings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of the transferee. The
identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the

transferee

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as sharve capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capifal of the transferor is

transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves.

Expenditure on issue of shares
Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account.

Implementation of New/ Modified Standards

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind-AS.
The Company has analysed the impact of these amendments which is not material to the Company.
Further, MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company

Material management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience & other refevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future
periods if it affects both current & future periods

Material management judgments
Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax




the Special Reserve created and maintained under section 36(1)(viil) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and
thus, the special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the company
does not create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - As a2 matter of prudence, income on
credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or on accrual basis when expected
realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding.

Material estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/famortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets,

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and antici pation of
future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may materially impact the DBO amount and the
annual defined benefit expenses,

Fair value measurements ~ Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a Lability, the Company uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy
is used for fair valuation.

Income Taxes - Material estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of
expected future profitability 1o assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL') — The measurement of an expected credit loss allowance for financial
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and
resulting losses). The Company makes significant judgments about the following while assessing
expected credit loss to estimate ECL:

* Determining criteria for » significant increase in credit risk;

» Establishing the number and relotive weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/ market and the associated ECL; and

+ Establishing groups of similar financial assets to measure ECL.

« Estimating the probability of default and loss given default {estimates of recoverable amounts in
case of default)




6  Caah and Cash Equivalents

Rl roms
articulars As al 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024
- Cash on Mand (Including imprest) 0w (X}
- Balances with Banks
- in current accounts A5q.01 4024
- deposits with original marunty of 3 months or less 827,54
Tolal 1,.211.68 16.26
7 Baok Balances (other than Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Tt rones
[Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024
« Earmarked Balances with Banks
- Far unpaid divdends 758 L7
- For Govemnment funds fur onward disbursement as grant 865 1384
- Earmarked Term Deposils
- Deposits in Compliance of Court Order a.7t 067
- Balances with banks not available for use pending allotment of 34EC 21021 1,24541
kapihl Gain Tax Exemption Bonds
- Deposits with original maturity greater than 3 months .59
Total 23754 245244




R Derivative Finasclal Instruments

The Comparty entens into detivatives for hedging foreign enchange risks and interest rate rigks. Denivatives heid for sk managoemmil parpeses b
bedges that are either designated os effective hadges under the bedge sccounteg tapsirensents o hadges that are econoanks hedges, P able bedowe b
e fair values of decvasive firancial Instramonts mcorded a3 wasets ar Babilities sogether with their notlonal amounis.

Fart ]
(&I Crones)
|Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-{0-2024
Notiosal | Fale Value- | FairValue. | Notional | Fair Value- | Fair Value-
Amounts Assels Liabilities Amounts A sty Liabilities
i) [Cumency Derivatives >
| Spot and torwards 4070 179 . - .
321087 16749 1w 312052 4234 M
15051256 15396 53 61023 | 12010724 1107 97 A2
LSS MO 1558611 62202 12433376 mnnesn 44995
N
75964 06 157912 25756 7212813 1347 7S
95,964 06 153080 25756 7202813 1367, 30075
(aidy
« Reverse crass currency swaps . . e s
Tatal - Derivative Fnancial Instruments (i+ii +fii) 2.54,704.50 16,977.23 ST9.58]  1,9636189 12,382.02 75570
Fart 1l
Included in Part | are derlvatives held for hedging and risk managensne purposes as below:
(8 iy Crares)
articulars As af 31-12-2024 Ap at 31-03-2024
r Notional | Fair Value - | Fair Valoe- | Notional | Fair Value. | Fair Valoo -
Amounis Answln Linbilities Amausnis Assels Liabititive
m qm Value Hedging
- Interest Rate Denivatives
- Forward Rute Agreoments and Interest Rate Swaps 13,995 %0 745 15449 1595070 - W7
Sub-tatal (i) 13,095,570 785 184,49 18,950,%0 - 297.73
{1l JCash Flow Hedging
- Cunrency Derivatives
-« Spat o forwardds 4mzm 33 . . -
« Currency Swaps o7 16745 1.9 Jie8 554 Hn
- Others
- Seagull Optices 1,51,512.% 15396.62 61023 1210074 L0709 41182
- Interest Ratu Derivatives
- Fonward Rate Agreements and Invorest Rale Swaps 7526836 $81.02 kX g 1947743 K830 ne
wb-tatal (i) 2,34,008 50 1657912 69508 1L7ATIAN 1201950 w197
i [Unéesignated Derivatives 470060 N 25 - 6,7200.00 36242
otal « Derdvative Financial Instruments Geiisiii) 254,704 50 1697723 87956 | LW 3618 12,482.02 759.70

Derivative financial instruments are reasured #t fair value at each repecting date. The changes in the falr value of denvatives designated as hedging
iestruments in effective cash flow hedges are recogrised in Other Comprehersive Income. In case of fair value hedges, e changes in lalr valve of e

derivatives designased s hedging instruments along with the fair value changes in the carrying smount af the hedged items are Tecognissd in the Statmar
of Peolit & Loss. Far urdesignated derivatives, the changes In the fale value ae rcognised i the Statement of Profit & Loss,




9 Receivables
The Cornpany has categorized all receivables st Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,

Tl poms
aticulars As at 31-12-2024 Agal 31-03-2024
I |Trade Receivables
M |Credit impaired receivables 2684 265
Less; Allowance for Expected Credit Lass (TGM)L (26.94)
Sub-Toteld - -
n Receivables
@ Considered good 6,07 370
: Allowance lor Expecied Credit Loss . -
6,02 37
Sub-Total Il 6,02 370
Total Receivables (1«11} 602 370

cf,h
Ay

o Delnl-g2
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@
(it}

(B)
i

(ii)

tiia)

(CHD

fi)
(i)

(CHIn)

Loans
The Company has categorised all loars at Amortised Cost in accordance with fhe requirements of Ind AS 109,
Eant nares)
[Pasticulars As at 31.12-2024 As at 31-03-2024
Pencipal Ofs | Amortised Cost | Principal Oy | Amsartised Cont
Loana
Term Loans 5,02,5M.76 5,05,206.41 4,62,0911.27 44097500
Working Capstal Term Loans £63,025.58 6341292 17.280.68 A7 590
Total {A) - Gross Loans, 5,65,620.64 5,68,618.33 50937055 51157257
Less: Impairment lass allowance (10.880.04) (10,880.04) (12.384,52) (12,30 52)
Total {A) - Net Loans £,5¢,740.60 £57,738.29 496,990,943 49919208
Security Details
Secured by langible assats 2,68,19567 26557718 24765053 A5 98
Covered by Covernment Guaraniees 24829424 25040504 2,24.500.49 2,25 967 KA
Unsecured 8212671 523351 3721992 7 IWT72
Total (B) - Groes Loans 5,65,620.64 5,68,61833 5,09.370.95 51157257
Less: Impalrment loss allowance (10.880.04) (10, 880.04) (12,3%0.52) (12,380.,52)
Total (B) - Net Loans. 5,54,740.60 5,57,738.29 4,96,990.43 4,99,192,05
Loans in India
Pubiic Sector 495644400 501617959 4,54.647 U8 4,56, 7% 28
Prwvate Sector 6717664 67,000.34 5472347 5¢.4678.29
Total (CNI) - Gross Loans 5,65,620.64 5,68,618.3% 50937095 51157257
Less: lmvpairment Joss allowance (10,880.04) (10,880.0¢) {12.380.52) {12.38152)
Total {CM1) - Net Loans §,54,740.60 55773829 4,96,990.43 4,95,192.05
Loans sutside India . . - "
Lass: Impadrment loss allowance
Total {CMIT) - Net Loans - . v a
Total (O and (CHID 5,54.730.60 5,57.738.29 4,96,950,43 4,99,152.05




Investments

R (o
|Prrticatan Amaortised Al fals value Sab-total Others Tetal
Cont Through Other |Through profit or| Designated at fair (At Cost
Comprehensive Inss value through
Income profit or Joss
U 23 3) 4 {50 1424344) (6) (7= 545)
161596 - . 1,615.96 1615.96
357845 . 204 4.540.07 e 454007
- 3R6 40 126,45 S12.85 010 51295
W72 . wmn ~ .72
s 386.590 LOSS 39 - 649760 010 6,697,720 |
s 386.40 1,088.49 ; 6,697 40 00|  &&70
52227 356,40 L08S 4% - 5,697 60 010 6,6%7.70
5227 TIEE. 4 5607 80 010 " T |
3210 . - - (32,104 - (>R 00 |
519061 386.40 1,088.49 . 50 010 566560
As at 31st March, 2024
ment Securities 162408 . - - 1.624.08 - 162408
Dbyt Securities 208409 . 106800 . L2002 x 320912
Equnty [nstruments - 41064 7637 LT ;M 010 #B7.n
Preference Shares ®72 - . z 2872 . nn
Total - Gross (A) 3,796.59 410.64 IALIE Y - 533893 010 5390 |
nvesiments outsice lndsa - - y > < > -
Investments in ndia 379689 41054 IRLIE ) 35,348.93 o0 5349003
otal - Gross (B) 379689 41054 1.141.80 . 54893 .10 5,349.03
otal Invesiments 3 oM 114140 55AEST a0 | 534503
: impaioment less allowance (O {28.72) . . mmi s
otal - Net (D=A-C) 3.768.17 41064 1,141.40 - $.520.21 010




12 Other financial ssscls

The Company has categorised all the companents under ‘Othor Financial Assets at Amortised Cost in accoedancs with the squinimvisis of

Ind AS 109
(2 i Crones)
[Particalars As at 31-12-2004 As at 31.03-2024
IA) [Leans to Employees 14 LY E)
(B} JAdvances to Employees 133 [
(€Y [Recoverable fram Holding Company 0.77 0nsl
(D) |Recaverable fram Subsidiary Campany 6.26 G896
13} curity Deposits 1.96 144
F) vance paid towards variation margin
(G} |Recoverable from Government of India
~Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds 24653.15 24,3940
(H) r amounts recoverable A3547 a0
Less: Impairment Loss allowance (4745) (40.36)
ther Amounts Recoverable (Net) 26822 KETRS
Total (A to H) 25,026 23 24420582
13 Current tax awsets (net)
(20 Crores
[Particutars As at 31-12:204 As at 11-05.2024
Advance Income-tax & TDS 2719 25947
Provsion for Income Tax 0.2%

Sub-Total 32784 23547
ax Depasited on incoee tax demands under contest 520 =2
ravision for incame 1ax for demand under contes: (0.25) «1.25#

Sab-Total 445 4.95

Current tax assets (Net) a2ae 20042
14 Deferred tax assels (net)
{Tin Crores)
Farticulars As at 31.12.2024 As at 31-03.2024
Deferred Tax Assects (Net) 263897 248546




5 Investnunt Fropesty

!l i Craten)
Opemieg Laiasie Additisen Salew ad vt Clasay Balanie
the De
T during the year during Doy
inons Carmyieg Yalue up . patiy
Sepreoation amerdation . 120 a0
Curying Valae . “wo - AN
[As ot 31007004 a - A
[Ceom Carrying Vat 2 -
Acratrulsted deprecoton s isaloe v N -
[Pt Camryiong Ve : ] ) .
15 Prepenty, Pt & Bquipmest 208 Inuogiile Assess
—— {n Creend
[Famtionlars Troperty, Plant & Eqeigraent Capal Worhia- | Indangitle P“
Fregree Asmets wndes Asiats
Doerlopamat
Frovhold Land | Rightwd-Use Bueldings P & Yurnetare & wr [ Vehinles Toead 1 Y Comrp Coenp
L A Fodures Equipments Eqripaeety Froperty Sedware Safrwas
G Carrping vdue
s M LA non sy cam 000 o B P ] o5 i n - uar
Addnern - . e 184 uh L am wi 351 . .
Porrowings Covt Capnadived [k
Dupvaan . . ' . 140 1. o om ™ . .
As s 1122028 M - Asen0 w0 o ne P [ mw “n . N
As ot J1002004 1o 15 e 2045 “es ne Wi o nL Pt . e
[Addssom - . - - el LT b o 1650 ek oS
orremmg Cont Captiaksed . im
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3112250 1" 154 oo E T “wn N0 B s S ST nun
As o 31002800 - am 0460 5o w n40 03 [ . - per
% bt T Abs yuar om w ow (L5 el Y am nm 1673 . 100
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As 2231122003 . o »e 20 nar ny 1nar w nae . . bl
As 4130 0L2004 o wR 352 ne nwn e LY s - wu
Charge Mar fre your ‘ nm T ner ax A v o 7% o
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Mok 2 3¢ 1122004 new i L) 15% wy 148 161 (2] N L2 - )
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(A)

(i0)]
€}
1F)
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Other non-dinancial aasels
(20 mres)
|Particulars As at 31:12.2024 As at 31-03-2024
ured, considered good
pital Advances 4 7
Advarces 633 797
Balances with Government Authorities 256 N7
Pre-Spent Corporate Social Respossibility (CSR) Expenises - 515
Prepuid Expenses 2946 219
Deferrod Employes Benefits PARK 1581
r Assels > 0.
Total (A to G) MN.14 A3.54
Assets Classified as Held for Sale
(44
Particalars As 2t 31-12-2024 A at 31-00-2024
Assets Clagsified as Held for Sale-Building om ()
Total om 0.05




(A)

(B)

Payable
(2 in Crores)
Particu lars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31.03.20249
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpeises 0.10 016
Total outstanding dues other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 4.38 7,3
Sub-tetnl 4.48 7.39
Other payables
otal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprses 238 283
Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 452 8469
Sub-total 690 11,52
Total (A+B) 11338 1891




(A)
0]
)
{aii)
()

(B)
(0]
(i)
{iii)
()

(]
0

)
()

(A)
m
(i)
(i)
(w)

®
(il
(i)
(sii)

&
(i)

Debt Secerities
The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
(¢ m Crores)
|Particulars As at 31.12.2024 As at 31.03.202¢
Face Value Amortised Coal Face Value Amortized Cosl
Secured Long-Term Debt Securities
Institutional Bonds - - 1.955.m 1052496
5JEC Capital Goin Tax Exemption Bonds A3 48985 4453404 41,1100 425357
Tax Froe Bonds 8998.71 9.146.20 899471 9,326.50
Bond Application Money pending allotment 21021 21007 124541 1,24457
Sub-total (A) S2.694.77 §3.890.51 53,309.92 55,1594
Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities
Institutional Bonds 1,57381.29 20419742 17227529 L78,193.91
Infrastructure Bonds 396 995 3% 932
Zero Coupon Bonds 2,753.84 274792 i :
Forelgn Currency Bonds 26,180.23 28,1539 3296375 J2.437 A4
Sub-total (B) 2,28,319.32 2,35,108.35 2,08,243.00 2,10,950.84
Unsecuted Short-Term Debt Securities
Commercial Paper . = 5 3
Sab-total (O) v v . -
[Total - Debt Securities (A+B+C) 25101809 2,58.998,90 2,58.552.92 2,66,109.92
Debt Securities insued in/ outside India
Debt Securitios in Indin 1.52,837.86 240,845 81 22558917 239,262 46
Debt Securities outside [ndia 24,180.23 25,153.09 32963175 3284748
Total « Debt Securities 2,81.018.09 2.58,998.90 25855292 2.66,109.92

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

The Company has categorised all borrowings {other than debt securities) at Amortised Cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS

109,
(2 @ Crowes)
[Pacticulars Asat 31.12.2024 As at 31.03.2024
Principal O Amarfised Cost Principal O/s | Amortised Cont
Unsecured Long-Term Barrowings
Term Loans from Banks 4837785 48,560.77 50612.25 5062045
Term Loans from Financial Institutions 455000 4,550.00 B.050,00 807229
Term Loan i Foreign Currency £8,000.01 §7,794.17 6720564 66,7720
Term Loans from Governrment of India (NSSF) 10,000 .00 0,122.31 1000000 10,325.12
Sub-total (A) 1,50,927 86 1.51,027.25 1,35,667.92 1,35,790.28
Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings
FCNR (B) Loans 4287904 4288655 2513867 2515129
Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 7.526.00 7.537.68 10,875 94 10,883 .04
Overdrafts/ Cash Cred it repayable on demand from Banks iz a2 267 44 267.44
Sub-total (B) 50,308.36 50,427.85 36,262.05 3630177
Total - Barrowings (other than Debt Securities) (A 1o B) 2,01,336.22 2,01,488.10 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) in/ outside India
Boreowings in Indla 11333621 1,13,660.93 10494400 10531967
Borrowings cutside India 8,000.01 87,794.17 6720564 66,7728
(Total - Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 1,72,145.97 1.72,092.08
7




22 Subordinated Liabilitics

The Company has categorised all subordinated liabilities at amortised cost in acoordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,

(mn Crun~)
Particulars As at 31.12.2024 As al 31.03,.2024
Face Value Amoclised Cosd Face Val uc Amartised Cosl
() |175th Series - Subordinate Tier-1l Bonds - 21510 225709 215120 2,041 5%
5.97% Redecmable at par on 28,03 2029
(i) [199th Series - Subordinate Tier-1l Bonds - 1,996 50 202523 1,999 5 204 Lan
796%, Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030
(iil) |22ind Series - Perpetual Tier-1 Bonds - 2,000.00 21057 2000m 214528
7.98% with call option on 30042033 and on annuai
anniversary date thereafier
(iv) |226th Series - Perpetual Tier- Bonds - 1,090.00 L1104 1,090 113338
B.03% with call option on 30.09.2033 and on anmual
amniversary date thereatter
Tolal - Subordinated Liabilities 7,240.70 7A498.53 7,240.70 TAIZ21
Subardinated Liabilities in/ outside India
{i) | Barrowings in Indis 724070 7495 53 724070 741221
() | Borrowings outside India . . - .
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 7,240.70 7A498.53 7.240,70 TAZN
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Other Financial Liabilities
i el
Parliculars As at 31-12-2024 As al 11032024
Unpaid Dividends 768 1127
Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds
- Maturod Bands & Iterest Accrued thereon ELE ) 242
« Irkerest on Bonds 1459 1032
Sub-tolal (B) 9370 3294
[Advance received towards variation margsn 235632 4 AR
Funds Received from Covernment of India for Disbursament as 95,280 91 Y, 282 52
Subsidy/ Grant (cumulative)
Add Interest on such funds (net of refund) iss 15
Less Dasbursed 10 Beneficlanes fcumulative) 196,273.86)) (96.2649.71)
Undisbursed Fands to be disburind as Subaidy/ Grast 03 16.37
Whyabln towards Bonds Fully serviced by Government of India 2068345 20,4240
Other Liabilties L6750 1,554 52
Total (A o B 3594048 182175
Current tax Habilities (net)
As at )1-13-2024 As at n-n)-m:[: —
. IZRIRS
. 321730
- 66,51
Provisions
(2 )
[Particulars As al 31122024 As al 31.03.2024
Provisions for
Employer Benefils
Grabaity 258 0
Eamed Leave Liability s a8
Medical Leave Liabihty 2140 1%
Settiement Allowance 240 2.3
Economic Rebabllitation Scheme 597 q92
Lowyg Service Award 450 4.51
Incentive nn 36,55
Others 080 17
Sub-torad (4 10635 104,55
Others
Expected Credlt Loss on Letters of Comlort 17.63 nne
Sxd todsi (8) 1763 32.02
Total (A+B) 12398 136,57
Other Non-financial Liabilities
(2 in C roroy)
Pasticulars As ot 21-12-2004 As ot 51-03-2024
Income Received in Advance o R
Sundry Liahilities Account (Funded Interest Capitalisation) $6.75 4780
Univlled Liability sowards Capital Acoount 48358 48.38
Uramortised Fee an Undisbursed Loans 6350 S8
Advance received lrom Govemment towards Covemment Schemes aos -
Sutalory Dues 305 58 08
Total (A o F) 19453 23962




17 Equky $dare Capilal

(Mt rish
A et 3102200 A Al YL TR
= No. of Saces A Neo. of Shores A rtrvord
utbarised <
Eguey shares of T 0 each S.00.00,00 (0 oo o0 00, Ok vt ey oom e
e, Subseribed and Paid up
Wik paid up Equiny shaves of 2 10 exch 2ea 512000 A0n el o2 TN TS5
Tatal 24330, 20 000 20032 263,320 000 1435202
2 lewruments entinely equily (n nate
(Fan it mmes)
As 30222003 Asar 31032834
I'T“'“““' Numser Ameunt Nt ber Ameunt
ulk patd up Perpetual Debis bastiumend erwely oguity i nature of 110 lakha mack 554 55440 RRT 5540
Towd 550 S58.40 LT 5620
23 Ocdar Eguity
12 1% Urowes)
As a1 X112 2004 As 3t 310N
(AL [Other Reserves
| Rower e covumed U 3801) (vl of the Income Tas At 156 nee Wl
Bl for Bad and dovtaid debte wiv %0 ) ia) of dw o Tus Ac 1980 s N
&) teey Resnrva win 450C of Resprve Bosk of [nda Act. 1934 [ERpIE 2 E2EN
iv ithes Mrenium L5TTN TR
v Jroceign Curmency Monemary hem Transhition Difleresce Accoun| [675.44) 1N 1
ol Reserve (e B2 LR
1 1] Earnings 15300 87 1% 4
10 |[Qlher Compreheasive Income (OCH
= Sty Inasvuments Srough Other C omprederiive facome {82248 7
~Eflective I'artion of Cash Flow Hedges [N (1 Baa )
« Coot of Hadging reseive (s 1040
Tolal - Other Equely e #5.591.53
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Inderest Incoave

(L] TN
[Particutaen Perind ended 3112:3024 Period endded 3-12.202%
On Firancial On Firancisl O Ninancial O Finamid On Financs On Faaecial
Al masscead | Atsely of | Assers 4-n Aviets pie d | Asects 1 A cnwtn anerenind o
o Fait Vilue | & Amactiad Cont| Fair Valoe through| ot Talr Vades Lol Amartiaed Contfhalr Vater thrangh
Iheagh OC1 Prafit of Loss througy OCI Frolitor Less
Interent on Loan Assels
Lang lerm financing - 16,105.95 . . 3 650
1 ierm fmancng AR A% ) . LAV W
Sub-tatel (A) - 38,3729 . - 33,4%02
Im Income from Investmenis
Irrterest from Long Term Investmeres . 9813 T3 ' 1V A
Sub-total (D) - ML TSN . 1298 asm
l ut om Dieposits with Basks
interest from Degosits . 1422 * 25097
Sub-tctal (C) . 1 - . 25w -
Other Interest Income
Imerest on Detayed Payewnts by Burroes + 193 - 10854
from Statf Advances - " > A5
Inberent on Mobdisation Advance . am . - 0
Invpoest s unwinding of Sece irab e on sctos re of Streses Lows Asets 7E5 - .
Sub-tatal (D) - 0145 . s 108 .
Total - Intevest Incoma (A w0 D) . et 738 . 33,9814 1505
Dividend Incosee
(2 40 Lrures)
Parthoulan Feriod anded 11-12-2804 Peried emded 31.12-2003
Dividend fram Subsidiary Company 7215 2040
ividend fram Ocher lavestments L nal
Totak - Dividend locame 11 4.3
Fees and Commission Incomae
(P = Croeen)
Particulan Tenod ended 31-12-2024 Period eoded 31-12-202)
Based (ncome 1% N
TFreasium s any
Odher | dar gl hoo of G ! Schemes QI8 P
Total - Fess and Commission Income 17050 LT
Other Income
(¥ n Croves)
|rarticulans Periud ended 31-13-2004 TFerlod ended 31122003
gand (loss) o dispoasal of sasets clasailind aa held for sale 6.0) 132
Rental Iscone 1287 1359
Lisksliticy/Provision Weimen Back 23 5
Fees fram Training Courses 038 1005
Miscellaneous lacome 22U nwn
Total + Oter Income 5379 M
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Foance Conts
Flnance Costs have boen incurred o hinancial lahines measured s amartised ol
< {2 In Cannsy
| Period ended 51122028 Feriod endod 11-12-1073
[sntevest on Besrowiogs
+ Loars fram Covernmere of Indis (NSSH) 41946% ISUT
- Lo from Banksf Finuncial lutetions s ANl
- Caternad Comumenial Bosrew ings 180 AL N
H Sub-Total () a0sw LA
[nierast on Debt Securites
« Domestic Debt Secuntes 134504 EETAE S
|- Forergn Currency Dt Securites 1004 52 1,0% S0
- Comwrercial Taper - 147
U| Sub-Totsl Gi) 1426054 12380
neerens on Subsedinated Liskilitien
- Subardinate Bonds 51368 And o
Sul-Total Gy 513688 a9
Othes Interest Expense
« Swap Preinium | 208 1 LA2n A
« Interest o Variston Margn MY 551
« Inderest e hiability lowands smployee benefils 263 . iRt
Sub-Tatal tiv) 155471 109008
Total - Finsoce Costs 2536704 145154
L. Finence Conts Capealised Qm) 0.3
Totzl - Fasance Conts (NeO 26,365.95 1208132
Nes sunslations ansaction svedange Jose) (gainl
(F 1 Crewen)
[Partieatars ~ Feriod ended 31-12-1904 Teciod ended 31133023
Net ranslabion/ fransaction svchange boss! (gan) 1A A 10682
Totad 1604) 10862
Fees and commission espenss
(2 in Caowes)
Particulacs Perbed ended 31-12-2004 Periad onded 31122028
Gusanice Fee 04 12
Listisg and Trumeeship Fee om i
Agency Fees 1 aw
Cradit Rating Expenses 338 101
Other Finunce Oharges 72 mee
Total & %0 v} 1240 1538
Net Gainl Bos) on Fair Valus Changes
(¥ b Croeos)
{Particutaes Perfed ended 31-12-2014 Pediad ended 11-12-202%
Net gain/ loss) on Hmanclal bna mements at Fair Valae
Wrough profit or loe
On trading Partfalio :
Others
- Changss in fair value of Dervacves an 283 36
« Changes o fair value of Long Term Invessments 28092 2y
< Changes o falr value of Shaet-term MF invesiments N 2m
Seb-total (1) 35654 87
Total (A} W6 4 JI8TH

For wlat cheages fn ik schaele are ether thee Mase sriumg su acconmd af Accraed mivres! o cgvnes sné arprosans chaeges 1o for ol of derivtioes dougatiod es commsen s

Reyes rl desigtbes weder hedge accanwting e i tioe bedge




(L)
i

Impairment on lleancial instrasenls
W L)
[Earticutare Period ended 11-12- 2034 Pesind ended 31-12- 2011
On fmancial isstrumends On financial svstruments On fimancial instruments Om Linancsal imslruments
oeasured ol FVOCT weasured sl Amortived Cont measused at FYOCI meamusnl s Amisimed Conl
~ Lowis * W5 L7y
- ireesimenin . 338
« Oners 1247 s
Total Gvia) 294 1646 52)
[mployes Benefils Expense
(F a0 Cnores]
[Pacticulars Teriod ended 31-12- 1024 Pesiod emded 11-17-300% '
- Salarses amd Allowances” %149 w2
- Contriucion ta Providess sod Ocher Funds 2604 nm
= Heet townnds Ressdential Accomaodation for Emplovess e A
- Soaff Walbses Expenses »a Wi
Total 185,33 15427
Dapreciation amd amorsization
(F o Croees)
|Particulass Period caded 11133004 Pariod ended 31122023
= Depreciation on Praperty, Mant & Equigeren 7.5 1h74
- Deprociation on | Froperty on =
~ Anieetization an Btangible Assets on L
rouu 7. ”n
Corporatr Sacial Reapamsibility Txpenses
e (&= L)
Farticular Perved ended 31122004 Pened 31-13-2423 |
Diret Fxpendieturs 19748 13 28
- Dverhenis L “am “nl
Total N2 27 ERIR
Ovher Eapenses
{2 1 Croves)
Fartewiar Feriod anded 31-13-2024 Peod cnded 3132300 )
« Travehing and Comwyance no REL3
Moty & Promchon Expanses PFLRAS 1305
+ Repairs snd Maivierance 7S R
- Renl laves and energy coats 545 o
- Insurance Changes 23 s
b+ COMmUBCation cos 9 v
- Printiag & stationery 1 108
- Director's siating fees 940 039
= Audders fees and eapenses 1 40 140
[ Legal & Mrodessional Oharges n 764
- Donatiors & Charey oo
- Net Lass on Disposs! of Property, Plant & Equipmest 581 37
- Tratning And Conlerence Expense max V237
- Government Scheme Moniesing Expesies LN T 558
- Orher Expenditure 1657 21328
A ONANG 0N
I3/ o
L-: Defni-zz |2) , |
':'C%.\\'. """ 4
N . - ¥ - /
e —




O Tax Expense

{2 inCrarcs)
Perlod ended 31-12-2024 Pariod encded 31-13-202)
» Curremt tax experse aan 2005 46
= Currom Max sxperse) (henelll) pertaming to cartier years -
Sub-sptal - Cumrent Tan 200250 2400088
= Deferrayt tax evpenses (credit) (] 251
Tatal 19 1625.%
4 Earnings per Share
"~ Feniod ended 31132034 Perind ended 1112 2623
P'rofit for the yesr from continuing operations as per Stamemen| n4wzm nmz ¢
Prefit and Loss (2 s Croees)®
Prolit for the vear from discoabnun! operstens as per
Statement of Mrofit and Loss (7 in Creses)*
Profit for the year fram continuing and doconlinued eperalions| namm 10,02 94
per Satement of Profir and Loss (T in Croees)*
average Nomber of squity shares 2433224000 LANI2 24,000
o & Diluted Earvangs per Share (In 1 8o an squty share ol 135 e
P10 each) [l comtinuing operations)
& Diluted Eanrings per Share (in ¢ for an ety share of
¥ 10 each) (for discortivuad operatcens)
aw A




REC Limited
Reghutersd Office - Cored, SCOPE Complen, 7, Lodhi Rosd, New Delhi - 110003, CIN: LIRIBIDE INGGOMEE043

Comselidated Balance Sheet as at 315t December 2024

1w Ly
S Ne. [Particulany Note &5 A
F Na ERERT) St-a1-2004
ASSETS
(L) | Fimscial Aseeis
ta] | Cah pod Cash Sguiralenis . 14283 b
(D) | Mank Waka noes 08 e Than (4] idese 7 s5418 e
) | Derivaave B cial Iniiv mants . Ty Qe
1) | Reden ables .
- Trade Kecel vabies n Lo
« Ot Kecereabios .02 tw
i | loum 10 LERRE 5.} A reas
0 | mveumesis " NS LIS
@ | Other Pinoncid Assts n 1503 5 Hann
Tatal - Fiasarial Awels (1 AL S4s
Q) | Neo-Finaecial Averis
() [ Curenn Tus Assets | New 3 i o
b} | Delered Yan Assets (Net) u L1655 83 e
11 | Unvevtment Fropersy " 191
W) | Property. Pani & Equpe " [vita) B
1) | Coptad Work-se Frogress " St W
M | Cther Intaegbis Ascen " 0w "
) | Ot Non-Finecid Assess n [0 Hrm
Tatal - New-Sivewcial Lisers &) imae 18 ™
90 JAssets claasttied an Seld dor sale " w M
Tobsd ASSETS cle3e® 12,7304 S50
TIABRLITIES AND TQUITY
LIABILITIES
| Finsncal Liabitities
19 | Dedbvative Hnavedn Isstrurrents L] e -
®) | Payelies "
Trode Mayabiies
Toad autalanding cues of 21wre pones Jnd smdll ¥ Ly nin
Total outstonding does of cradtion sther Shan relor seharpe vee WL @35
end anall esterzomen
Ochar Ppyanies
Toul cutvandug daes of o oty ot sl P W I8
Totsl dng dues of oredients ceder than mik ro enterprises LN s
o sl enier e
el | Debn Stcunites e LESVA5 S Taani g
(| Borrovn g (ol than Dedt Secanted n LM A% 0 L7200 0
drl ) Ssibordisetnd Lustaloes 1 JAava T
N ) Oty Frnancs Litibtes n MIw N RKTEE
Totet « Fiuareial Lisbdsties 1) BIR2E i
@ | Noa-Fmancial Liabiiities
0 | Currestt Tas LamSiies (S " . a8 50
i | Py sianc » 14 (LI
W | Oy Nom Faaesal Lods i » K¢y v
Taral - Noa-Fivanrial Ladilites () s His
) | EQuUITY
M) | Equite Share Captad » 16313 REA B H)
b | Iebrmeces Patiety EQuiy 10 Nadure » 5% 0 560
1 ] Other Fysiny » REC IR o, 13643
Toled - Eqwiy () TN 9,35¢23
Loked « LIAMEITTES AND EQIMNTY (20 AT AR08
P-_nymzn(mmmm 145




REC Limited
Regisiered OFtice « Cose-d, SCOPE Compler, 7 Lodhi Roxd, New Delh - 120003, CIN: Le0101 DLISSSGO 106505
Consolidated Statement of Prafit and Loss for the period ended 316t December, 2024

A€ a0l s
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REC Limited

Raghvterad Officy - Carn-4, 3COPE Canples, 7, Ledhi Read, New Oelhu - 110003, CIN. Ladiat DL COLO0SOYS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31t Deconsber 2024

Period ended 311236003
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REC Limited
Regictome Otfice - Cane-d, SCOPE Comples, 7, Lodhi Taad, Novwe Dallhs - 110003, CIN: LI DL INAG0OI065298

Consolidated Statemant of Changes in Equity for the pertod ended 335t December 2024
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REC Limited
Registered Office - Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003

CIN: L40101D1L1969G OI005095

Notes to Accounts

Company Overview

REC Lirmuted ("REC” or the "Company” or the “holding company”) was incorporated in the year 1969
The Company is domiciled in India and is limited by shares, having its registered office and principal
place of business at Core-4, SCOPE Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003, India, The books of
accounts are maintained at the Corporate Office situated at Plot no. I-4, Sector-29, Gurugram, Haryana,
in addition to the registered office of the Company, The Company has offices spread across the country,
mainly in the State Capitals and one training centre at Hyderabad,

The Company is a Government of India Enterprise engaged in extending financial assistance across the
power sector value chain and is a Systemically Important (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Non-
Banking Finance Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Being an NBFC, the
company is regulated by Reserve Bank of India.

The company has been accorded with the status of a “Maharatna' Central Public Sector Enterprise by
the Department of Public Enterprises, under the Ministry of Finance.

REC is a leading Infrastructure Finance Company in India and the prindpal products of REC are
interest-bearing loans to State Electricity Boards, State Power utilities/State Power Departments and
Private sector for all segments of Power infrastructure. During FY 2022-23, REC has also diversified into
the Non-Power Infrastructure sector comprising Roads & Expressways, Metro Rail, Airports, IT
Communication, Social and Commercial Infrastructure (Educational Institution, Hospitals), Ports and
Electro-Mechanical (E&M) works in respect of various other sectors like Steel, Refinery, etc.

The group is also engaged through its subsidiaries in engineering consultancy services. Ministry of
Power, Government of India/State Government, allocates independent transmission projects from time
to time to the Company to work as Bid Process Coordinator (BPC), for selection of developers as
Transmission Service Provider (TSP) through Tariff Based Competitive Bidding Process (TBCB), In
order to initiate development of each such transmission projects, RECPDCL incorporates a project
specific Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company and after the selection of
successful bidder through TBCB process notified for transmission projects, the respective project
specific SPV along with all its assets and liabilities is transferred to the successful bidder.

RECPDCL is providing consultancy and fee based service in the areas of rural electrification, AT&C loss
reduction strategies, IT implementation work including setting up of data Centre, customer care centre,
etc. with GIS integration, Implementation of Smart Grid projects covering Smart metering with AMI,
Construction of Solar PV Plants, SCADA implementation MRI/AMR based meter reading & billing
works, DPR preparation & project management! Consultancy for power Distribution Projects,
Strengthening work of Power Distribution, Energy efficiency projects and Quality & Quantitative
Surveillance/ Inspection of the works executed.

The shares of the Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.
Further, vanous debt securities of the Company are also listed on the Stock Exchanges.
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Basis of Preparation
These Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared for the purpose ot

inclusion of financial information in respect of fund raising programmes of the group and complies
with the measurement principles laid down under Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
other applicable regulatory norms / guidelines including those issued by RBL These financial
statements for the period ended 31st December 2024 were autherized and approved by the Board of
Directors on 06th February 2025,

Material Accounting Policies
The material accounting policies applied in preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as

given below:

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary

Subsidiary s the entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it has power over
the investee, Is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial staternents of
subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases. The Group combines the financial statements of the
holding company and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses.

Equily accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise of the interests in associates and joint

venture.

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity, over which the Company has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method. These interests are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-accounted investees
until the date on which significant influence ceases. However, in case where it is assessed that the
investment/ interest in associates is held for sale, the interest in assodates is accounted for under Ind AS
105.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets
of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

[nterests in joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost

which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements

include the Group’s share of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) of equity-

accounted investees until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.
—
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Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-

group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that here is

no evidence of impairment.

Basis of Preparation and Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual
system of accounting on historical cost basis except for cerfain financial assets and financial liabilities
which are measured at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. These policies have been
applied consistently for all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency
The consclidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional

currency of the Group.

Income recognition

Interest imcome

Unless otherwise specified, the recoveries from the borrowers are appropriated in the order of (i) costs
and expenses of REC (i) delayed and penal interest including interest tax, If any (iii) overdue interest
including interest tax, if any and (iv) repayment of principal; the oldest being adjusted first, except for
credit impaired loans and recalled loans, where principal amount is appropriated only after the
complete recovery of other costs, expenses, delayed and penal interest and overdue interest including
interest tax, if any. The recoveries under One Time Settlement (OTSY Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
(IBC) proceedings are appropriated first towards the principal outstanding and remaining recovery
thereafter, towards interest and other charges, if any.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets,

Interest on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognized on
an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is disclosed separately
under the head interest income.

As a matter of prudence, income on credit impatred loan assets is recognised as and when received or
on accrual basis when expected realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding.

Rebate on account of timely payment of interest by borrowers is recognized on receipt of entire interest
amount due in time, in accordance with the terms of the respective contract and is netted against the

corresponding interest income.
Income from Government schemes




Income of agency fee on Govemment schemwes is recognized on the basis of the services rendercd and
amount of fee sanctioned by the Ministry of Power.

Dividend income

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is taken into account on
accrual basis when right to recelve payment is established.

Provided that in case of final dividend, the right to receive payment shall be considered as established
only upon approval of the dividend by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting,

Dividend on financial assets subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss is recognised
separately under the head ‘Dividend Income’,

Rental Income on Investment Property
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Other services
Fees/ charges on loan assets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, are accounted for on

accrual basis. Pre-payment premium is accounted for by the Group in the year of receipt.

Revenne from sale of services
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The Group uses the principles laid down by the Ind AS 115 to determine that how much and when
revenue is recognized, what is the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues etc. In
accordance with the same, revenue is recognised through a five-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer,

(ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract;

(i11) Determine the transaction price;

{iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; and
(v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts
and other indirec! taxes.

In Cast Plus Contracts - Revenue is recognised by including eligible contractual items of expenditures
plus proportionate margin as per contract;

In Fixed Price Contracts — Revenue is recognised on the basis of stage of completion of the contract. The
Group has assessed that the stage of completion is determined as the proportion of the total time
expected to complele the performance obligation to that has lspsed at the end of the reporting period,
which is an appropriate measure of progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance
obligations under Ind AS 115,

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances
change Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss
in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.
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Professional charges to be charged from the selected bidders/developers for transmission projects pul
on tariff based bidding is accounted for in the year in which it is reasonably certain that the ultimate
collection of the professional charges will be made.

Sale proceeds of Request for Proposal (RFP) documents is credited to the respective SPV and sale
proceeds of Request for Qualification (RFQ) documents is retained by the Group and accounted as
income of the Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds, Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and/ or construction
of a qualifying asset, till the time such qualifying asset becomes ready for its intended wuse, are
capitalized, A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its
intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as per the
effective interest rate method,

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

To calculate diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Foreign Currency Translation

Fareign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the funchonal currency of the Group using the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and the re-
measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at period-end exchange rates are
recognized In the Statement of Profit or Loss, However, for the long-term monetary items recognized in
the consolidated financial statements before 01" April 2018, such gawns and losses are accumulated in a
“Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance
period of such long term monetary item, by recognition as income or expense in each of such periods,

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period-end and are measured at historical cost (translated
using the exchange rates at the transaction date),

. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Recognitton and initial measurement

Land

Land held for use is initially recognized at cost. For land, as no finite useful life can be determined,
related carrying amounts are not amortized,
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Land also includes land treated as a Right of Use asset under lease agreement earlier classified as
finance lease and is amortized over the lease term.

Other tangible assets
PPE other than land is initially recognized at acquisition cost or construction cost, including any costy

directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as 4 separale aswel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fow to
the Group beyond one year. Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss as incurred

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives, residual value, and impairment)

PPE are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Depreciation on PPE is provided on the straight-line method over the useful life of the assets as
prescribed under Part ‘C" of Schedule 1I of the Companies Act, 2013,

Deprectation on assets purchased/sold during the year is charged for the full month if the asset is in use
for more than 15 days, Depreciation on assets purchased during the year up to Rs. 5,000/- is provided «
100%.

The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial
year. PPE other than land is tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

De-recogmition

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work in-Progress

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital work-in-progress.’ The
cost compnses purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization ¢niteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition/ construction of PPE
which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are classified under ‘Capital Advances '

Investment property

Recognition and measurement
[nvestment property are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated deprecation and
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accumulated impairment Joss, if any. The depreciation is charged on straight-line method over the
useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part 'C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Derecagnition
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The

difference between the net dispesal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recogmised in
profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Reclassification to/from investinent property

Transters are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers
between investment property and owner-occupied property do not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure

purposes.

Fair value disclosure

The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the relevant location and category of the investment property being valued.

Intangible assets

Recogmition and initial measureren!

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such assets are recognized where it is probable that the
future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the Group.

Subsequen! measurement (amortization method, useful lives and residual value)

All intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on o straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives, and a pogsible impairment is assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. Residual values and useful lives for all intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting
date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting estimates. Management estimates the
useful life of intangible assets to be five years.

Intangible Assets under Development

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalization under intangible assets is carned as
‘Intangible assets under development’ till they are ready for their intended use. Advances paid for the
acquisition/ development of intangible assets which are outstanding at the balance sheet date are
classified under ‘Capital Advances',

Derccognifion of Intangible Assels

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the
Statemnent of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Lease accounting:
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection with all former
operating leases except for those identilied as short-term or low-value lease.
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A lease is defined
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset {the underlying asset) for a period

of time in exchange for consideration”.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are
whether:
- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group
- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the
contract
- the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the penod of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease hability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of
the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remave the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any incentives received),

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, The
Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be
exercised.

Subsequent to inital measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for
Interest. Tt is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments.

When the lease Liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use
asset, or profit and Joss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as Held for Sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the sale is highly probable. A sale is considered
as highly probable when such assets have been decided to be sold by the Group; are available for
immediate sale in their present condition; are being actively marketed for sale at a price and the sale has
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been agreed or is expected to be concluded within one year of the date of classification. Such assets are
measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Assets held for sale are presented separately from other assets in the Balance Sheet and arc not
depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.

Where the Group is committed to a sale plan involving Joss of control of an entity, it classifics
investment in the entity (i.e. all the assets and liabilities of that entity) as held for sale.

Financial Instruments
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Inetial recognition and measurenen!

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Croup becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initiaily at fair value adjusted by
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are messured
initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial habilities is described

below.

Classification and subseguent measurenent of financial assels

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories
upon initial recognition:

*  Amortized cost

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or at FVOCI are subject to review for impainment at least
at each reporting date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied to each
category of financial assets, which are descnibed below.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) if both of the

following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold financial assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Impairment Allowance (expected credit loss) is recognized on financial assets carried at amortized cost.

Madification of cash flows

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, and the
renegotiation or modification does not resull in derecognition of that financial asset, the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall be recalculated as the present




value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the flnancial asset’s
original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the maodified
financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

Financial assets al FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the critenia for amortized cost
clagsification or are equity Instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative finandal instruments also fall into this
category, except for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge
accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or
losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by
reference to active market transactions or using a valuation technigue where no active market exists.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host

contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise
would be required by the contract to be medified according to a specified inteérest rate, foreign
exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not spedific to
a party to the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
or if the embedded derivative feature leverages the exposure and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets al FVOCI

FVOCI financial assets comprise of equity instruments measured at fair value, An equity investment
classified as FVOCI is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income and reported within the FVOCI reserve within equity,
except for dividend income, which is recognized in profit or loss. There is no recycling of such gains
and losses from OCI to Statement of Profit & Loss, even on the derecognition of the investment.
However, the Group may transfer the same within equity,

De recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to a substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the lerms and conditions
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification
Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financlal asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) are derecognized (ie. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to




substantially all the risks and rewards are transterred. The Group also derecognizes the financial asset if
it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition,

Classification and subsegquent meassremient of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at FVIPL, that are carried subsequently at

fair value with gains or lesses recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of fimancial Kabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the oniginal lability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

Hegdge accounting

To qualify for hedge accounting, the hedging relationship must meet all of the following requirements;

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged itern and the hedging instrument

- the effect of credit nisk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the entity actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the entity
actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

All derivative financial instruments designated under hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at fair value at each reporting date. To the extent that the hedge is
effective, changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges
are recognised in other comprehensive income and included within the cash flow hedge reserve in
equity. Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

At the time the hedged item affects profit or loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented as a reclassification
adjustment within other comprehensive income.

At the inception of each hedging relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship, in accordance with the Croup’s risk management objective and strategies. The
documentation includes identification of the hedged item, hedging instrument, the nature of risk(s)
being hedged, the hedge ratio and how the hedging relationship meets the hedging effectiveness
requirements,

Fair Value Hedges
In Tine with the recognition of change in the fair value of the hedging instruments in the Statement of

Profit & Loss, the change in the fair value of the bedged item attributable to the risk hedged s
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such changes are made to the carrying amount of the
hedged item and are adjusted in Effective Interest Rate in the period when the hedging instrument




314

ceases to exist. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in Statement of Profit and Loss

Impairment of financial assets

Loan assels

The Group follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment in the form of Expected Credit Loss (ECH)

based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

« Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit nisk since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date,

* Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that do not have objective cvidence of impairment,

» Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date,

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and lifetime ECL

for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default

and Loss Given Default, detined as follows;

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulling on its
obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the instrument.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's expectation of loss given that a default
occurs. LGD is expressed in percentage and it shows the proportion of the amount that will actually be

lost post recoveries in case of a default.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - EAD represents the amounts, including the principal outstanding, interest
accrued and outstanding Letters of Comfort that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default.

Forward-looking economic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD
and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

Fimancial assets other than Loans

In respect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at
the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition. The Group also considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition. The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet
date.

Write-offs

Financial assets are wrilten off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped
pursuing the recovery or as directed by the order of the Judicial Authority.
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A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activitics lo
financial assets written off/ may assign [ sell loan exposure to ARC / Bank / a financial institution for a
negotiated consideration.

Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement activities are recorded in statement of profit and

loss,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-
term, highly liquid investments (original matunity less than three months) that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an [nsignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend and Other Payments to holders of Instruments classified as Equity

Proposed dividends and interim dividends payable to the shareholders are recognized as changes in
equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of
Directors respectively. Liability for the payments to the holders of instruments classified as equity are
recognized in the penod when such payments are authorized for payment by the Group.

Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the
prior pericds presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, the opening balances of assets, labilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are
restated,

Prepaid Expenses
A prepaid expense up to Rs. 1,00,000/- is recognized as expense upon initial recognition.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax. It is
recognized in Statemnent of Profit and Loss, except when it relates to an item that is recognised in OCI or
directly in equity, in which case, the tax is also recognised in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Habilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to
apply to their respective period of realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted
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enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the

same fax authority.

Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax awat is
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tox
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable

that the related tax berefit will be realized.,

Changes in deferred tax assets or habilities are recognized as a component of lax income or expense in
profit or loss, except where they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive

income or equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as o paid
annual leave) where the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within
twelve manths after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services and non-
monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured on an undiscounted basis,

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
plans as under:

Defined contribulion plan

A defined contribution plan is  plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions in respect of the
employees into a separate fund. The Group has ne legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after its payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions made by the Group towards
defined contribution plans are charged to the profit or loss in the period to which the contributions
relate.

Definred benefit pla
The Group has an obligation towards Gratuity, Post-Retirement Medical Facility (PRMF), Provident
Fund (PF) and Other Defined Retirement Benefit (ODRB) which are being considered as defined benefit
plans covenng eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will
receive on retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service, final salary, and other
defined parameters. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Group, even if plan assets for
funding the defined benefit plan have been sat aside

The Group's obligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carmmied out at the end of each annual reporting period. The
liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of
the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan acsets.
Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries.




n

322

Actuarial gainsflosses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in (ther
Comprehensive Income.

Other long-term employee benefits:
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than vne-
year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an

independent actuary using the projected unit credit method,

Actaarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuanal assumptions are
charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined.

Loan to employees at concessional rate

Loans given to employees at concessional rate are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The difference between the initial fair value of such loans and transaction
value Is recognised as deferred employee benefits, which is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
expected remaining period of the Loan. In case of change in expected remaining period of the Loan, the
unamortised deferred employee benefits on the date of change is amortised over the updated expected
remaining period of the loan on a prospective basis.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assels

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 5
past event: it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Group and
amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. Provisions
are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with
the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money
is material,

A contingent lability is disclosed for:

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
the Group or
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot
be made,

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or remote, no lability is recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain o collect from a third party conceming the
obligation (such as from insurance) is recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not
exceed the amount of the refated provision.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when the inflow of economic benefits is probable, the
related asset is disclosed.

Fair value measurement
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market partictpants at the measurement date The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes plice either

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk, assuming that moarket
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consclidated financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements regularly, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a
whole} at the end of each reporting period.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there 18 a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Business Combination under Common Control

A business combination, if any, involving entities or businesses under common control is o business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the business combination and that control is not transitory.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under commen control are accounted for using
the pooling of interest methed as follows:
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® The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,

e No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognize new assets or liabilities.
Adjustments are made only to harmonise material accounting policies.

* The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prnor periods is restated ax il
the business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination

The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor s
aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the fmancial statements of the transferce. The
identity of the reserves is preserved and the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the
transferee

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is
transferred to capital reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves,

Expenditure on issue of shares
Expenditure on issue of shares, if any, is charged to the securities premium account.

Implementation of New/ Modified Standards

During the year, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued amendments to certain Ind AS
The Group has analysed the impact of these amendments, which is not material to the Group, Further,
MCA has not issued any new Ind-AS applicable to the company.

Material management judgment in applying accounting policies and estimation of uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the related disclosures. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience & other relevant factors and are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Changes in accounting estimates- Such changes, if any, are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision & future
periods if it affects both current & future penods.

Material managemen! judgmenls

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liability - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized
is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assels can be utilized. Further, the Management has no intention to make withdrawal from the Special
Reserve created and maintained under section 36{1)(viii) of the Income tax Act, 1961 and thus, the
special reserve created and maintained is not capable of being reversed. Hence, the Group does not
create any deferred tax liability on the said reserve,

Recognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Reserves of Group Companies - The
applicable tax laws provide for tax deduction in respect of dividend income from equity investments, to
the extent of dividend declared by the Company to.i




historical information and dividend distribution policy of the Company, the Company does not expect
any tax liability on the undistributed reserves of the Group Companies, as and when such reserves arc
distributed. Hence, the Company does not create any deferred tax liability on undistributed reserves of

Group Companies.
Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of the applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several extemal and internal factors which could result in

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Investment in SPVs - Transmussion projects are managed as per the mandate from Government of
India and the Group does not have the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these projects

unilaterally. The Group therefore considers its investment in respective SPVs as associates having
significant influence despite the Company holding 100% of their paid-up equity share capital.

Non recognition of Interest Income on Credit Impaired Loans - As a matter of prudence, income on
credit impaired loan assets is recognised as and when received or on accrual basis when expected
realisation is higher than the loan amount outstanding.

Material estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of
future salary increases, Variation in these assumptions may materially impact the DBO amount and the
annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing
estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or 2 liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. In case of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used
for fair valuation,

Income Taxes - Material estimates are involved in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected 1o be paidirecovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of
expected future profitability to assess deferred tax asset.

Expected Credit Loss ('ECL) ~ The measurement of an expected credit Joss allowance for financial
assets measured at amortized cost requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about Ruture economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and
resulting losses). The Group makes significant judgments about the following while assessing expected
credit Joss to estimate ECL:

* Determining criteria for a significant increase in credit risk;
» Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/ market and the associated ECL; and

* Establishing groups of similar finandal assets to measure ECL.
+ Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in




Cask and Cash Equivalents
st )
Particulars Ax ot 31122024 A ¥ 3002004
= Cash on Hand (including imprest) e g
« Badances with Banks
« in current accounts LN (T
depuasts with original matenty of 3 morths or less 104572 195 08
Total 1,432.63 26275
Bank Balances (other than Cash end Cash Equivalents)
Lt
Pazticulars As at 31-12-2024 As st 31-03-2024
« Earmarked Balances with Banks
Yor unpaid dividends 754 LR
For Covernment funds for onward dsbussemert as grand 33052 w955
- Barmarked Term Deposity
Deposits in Comphance of Court Ocder amn D h7
« Balances with banks nol available for use pending allotment of S4EC Capital 210 124544
Gain Tax Exemptisn Besds
~Other Term deposits 295.06 141 40
Total| §54,18 169975
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Derivative Fimancial Instnusents

The Company enters inlo derivasves for hedging loresgn exchange risks end isterest rae rsks. Deavabives keld fon el moanagessrs
prrposes indude bedges that are citiher designaled as effective hedges wnder the badge accoanting roguiiements we baalges 1kl ane
economic hedges, The tatde below shany 1he Lar values of desivative lranclal insruments recoeded A sssets o llabillies Jgether wity

thie sotional amousts.
Fart |
1 LUnoresh
[Pacticulars As at 31122024 As at 37-05-2024
Nosionad | Fadr Value - | Fair Value-| Notional | Fabr Valee - | Fair Valoe
Amoumts Assets Liabikities | Amounts AsSsuls I‘iobﬂi_ﬂje_s_'
Hm-q Derivatives o~
« Spot and forwands L0720 REV) < .
- Cursency swaps LINEY 106749 nm» Al2an2 <A IR
« Others
~Seagull Opticns L5LS1250] 15396 K0 61023| 121307 Loy 41n2
Al © LALTS044 | 153961 62202 1282337 I1,14M 13595
Intereat Rate Derivatives
Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swaps 55,564,006 13912 /75| MBI 126970 AR
Sub.total (1) 95,964.06 137913 57.56 TAAB 136771 3875
Other derivatives
- Reverse cross cumoncy swaps v - . - .
Tetal - Derivative Financial Instruments (8 + i+t 2.54,704.50 16,977.23 579,55 | _l&‘l.ﬂ 1248202 739.70
Pact Il
Included i Part Fare desivatives beld for hedging and risk management purposes as below:
(*in Cres)
Particulars As at 31-12-2004 As al 31-03-2004
Notional | Fair Value« | Fair Value - | Notienal | Fair Valae - | Fair Value -
Amounts Assets Liabilities | Amounts Asscls Liabalities
Falr Value Hedging
« Inlerest Rate Drivatives
- Forward Rate Agreements and Interest Rate Swvaps B9%570 785 345 159070 20T
{Sub-total th 1099520 755 wess| 1595070 . 29773
| Cash Flow Hedging
« Cwrency Derlvatives
~Sgot and Forward 401700 33 . . -
= Corrency Swaps 321087 0749 n» 1852 PR ¥
« Others
- Seagull Options 1,51,5125 159682 61023 1ILF U 13,07090 9182
- Intevest Rale Derlvatoves
« Forward Rate Agresmente and Inlerest Rate Sweaps 7528% asLm 2307 15477 4% 94530 e
Sub-total i} 230ME0] 165M.02 69509 LAATILYY  1.,019.460 46197
Undesignated Derivatives 670000 s . 670000 462.42
Total « Derlvative Finsacial Instruments Geiiviiil 2547450, 1897723 BT9.58| 19nasime) 1243202 759,70
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Recelvables

(2 Crowes)
Particulars As ot 31-12-2024 As at 31.03-2024
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered good 139.64 11543
Lasss: Allkwance for Expected Cradit Loss (292) (&.43);
13872 106.30
Trade recelvables which bave sgnlficant increse sn credit risk 7392 3890
Less: Aflowance for Expected Credit Lass (1999) (1658)]
53493 an
Credit impaired receivables 7255 €610
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss (67.95) (61200}
460 5.20
Sub-Totak-l (i+ii+iii) 19425 153.82
Other Keceivablos
Unsecured, Considered good 602 370
Lesss Allowance for Expected Credit Loss - .
6,02 370
Sab-Tatal-dl (3) 6.02 R
Total Receivables (1<11) 20027 157.52
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Loans

The Compasy has calegodised all loans ol Armoettsed Cost n accordance with the requiresients of Ing AS 109,

{8 b incs)

Pasticulars As at 31122009 AS 2l 31002024
Principsl OV | Amartised Cost |  Priacipal O/ Amortinod Croel
Loans
Term Loans 5025176 50520541 462,090 .27 LRSS
Warking Capital Teem Loans 6302582 €A1292 47,2068 AZS0
Tota!l (A} - Gross SASADEO1 54041433 5.09,370.9% 51157257
Loss Impairment loms allowance (HLERO 051 {10.580.04) {12,380.57 12,2052y
Total (A}« Net 554.740.60 55773829 4,9,990.43 49309205
Seeurity Detalls
Secured by tangible assets 26519567 28547714 247.650.5) 24006 ™
Covered by Covernerent Cuararitves 248.2968.26 25040604 22450049 2,25,967 46
Unsecured 2,000 523511 21992 Xysn
Total (B) « Gross Loans| 5.65,62064 568615833 5.00.570.95 Susnsy
Less: Empairment loss allowance [(10,850.04) (10880.04) (10,280 52) n:.msa.|
Total (B) - Net Loans 5,54,790.60 5579829 4.96,9%.03 49519205
Loans in India
Public Sector 15844000 S01.61750 454547 % 4,55 00, 24
P'rivate Sector &72,57664 67,0004 54723.87 $0TH.2Y
Total (O - Geoss Loany SA5A20.04 565,618 33 5.09.370.95 5,11,57257
Less: Impairment Joss allovance {10880.04) (10,850.04) (12,380.52) (12,3952
Total 1O} « Net Loans 55474060 557,73829 4.56.930, 42 45519208
Loans outside India - . 4 2
Less: Impairment boss aliowance -
Total (O - Net Loans . . - .
Total (ONT) and (CKITY 5,5¢,740.60 S57.7382% 4,99192.05
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(2 in Crores)
Particulars Amortised At fair value Substotal |Others (Ar Total
Cost Through Otber | Through profit | Designated at Cost)
Comprehensive or loss fair value
Income {through profit or;
loss
m i) 3) 14) (5= 1424344} 16} (7= 5+6)
As al 318t December, 2024
ovemnament Securities 16159 . - - 1,615.96 - 1.615.96
Debt Securities 36100 - 96204 457295 457295
Equity Instruments - 18640 12645 512.85 - 51285
Preference Shares B2 . . 28.72 2872
otal - Gross (A) 5,255.59 186.40 1,088.49 6,730.48 - 6,730.48
Investments outside India - - - - - - .
Investments in India 525559 35640 1,085 .45 . 6,730 .48 . 6,730.48
Total - Gross {B) 5,235.59 356,40 1,088.49 - 6,730.48 - 6,730.48
Total Investments 525559 386.40 1,088.49 . 6,730.48 - 6,730.48
|Less: impairment oss allowanee (C) (32109 . . . (32.10) - (32.10)
Total - Net (D-A-C) 522349 366,40 1,088.49 - 5,694.38 - 6,698,385
As al 31st March, 2024
chmmu!nk Securities 162408 - - - 1.624.08 1,624.08
Debt Securities 217620 - 1.06503 31123 324123
Equity Instruments . 410.64 7637 457.01 487.0
Profererce Shaves 1’872 . nn 28.72
Total - Gross (A) 3,829.00 41084 1,141.40 - 5381.04 . 5,351.04
Investmends outside India - - - - . . 2
Investments in India 3,82900 41064 1,141.40 - 538104 - 538104
Total - Gross (B) 3,829400 410,64 114140 - 5,361.04 - 5381.4
"Total Investments 352900 41064 LMLKW 5,381.04 538104
Less: impairment loss allowance (O 28.72) . . ¢ 12872) - (28.72)
Total - Net (D=A-C) 3,500.28 410.64 1,141.40 - 535232 5,352.32

Is
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Other fimancial assets

The Company has categorised all the components under Uther Financial Assets a1 Amartised Cost i accordamce with the raguirenownis of [ad AS jo0

AT Lo
As ak 31-12-204 Ar 2l 31902024
Loans bo Employees 7S 5Tw»
Advances to Employees 1.40 [(E1]
able tram Holding Company 07? (11
rity Deposits 28 155
nce paid towards variation mangen .
ble from Government af India
Towards Gol Fully Serviced Bonds J£5315 24330
amounis recoverable 5363 13
Less: Impainment Loss allowance (7.94) HOKY)
Other Amounts Recoverable (Neth J 684 6137
Total (A 10 F) 1503459 2844172
Current Lax assets (neth
L @ ners)
Particulars As a1 31-12-2024 As al 31402024
Advance Incomeax & TDS ELod ] A7
[Lass: Provision for Income Tax 4053)\ i15m)|
Sub-Total (1) 1487 MWan7
Tax Deposited on income tax demands under contest 520 ER
mion foe income tax for demand wsder contest “UJ# 135
Sub-Total (1) 455 50
urresd bax assets (Ned) 3146 09 .60
Oeferved tax assets inet)
Parliculars AN NH Asal mn-igo
Deferred Tax Assata (Ngt) 1,555.83 2,500 90
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Other non-financial sssets
{2 s
|Particutars As at 31122024 As it O3 20H
naecured, considered good
Capital Advarces 264 Wi
Advances 1642 I
Balamcus with Government Autharities un 4230
Pre-Spent Coepocate Social Hesponsibility {CSR) Expenses - 5H
Fxpenses x5 2m
Diederred Employee Cost pARE] 15N
Asaets . am
Total (A w G) 194,10 1703
Assets classifiod as held for sale
(21 L)
|earticelars As 3t 11122024 As 3t 31032023
Disposal Group
(1} Irvestment in assocates am aan
1) Loans to assockates 620 1925
1) Provvasson for empairment an assets dassified s held for sale ¢
[Sub-Total (elleii) 590 2018
Assets Classified as Held for Sale-Building am 0
Total (B) o0 ces
rand Tatal (A+B) a0 020
Liabilities directly assoclated with assets clagsified as bold foe sale
Paynbile 10 sesociates .
Total 00} - .
|Net Assets held for sale LAVB.C) 91 .20

Assets hedd for sale 25 on 31,03 20N includes Rs. 001 crore under itigation pendisg the oulcome, Uw axset Carmol be re-asctiveed (previous e ml).




19 Payables
Lt nl\'\}
Particulurs As 4t 31122004 Anal 1140-2024
(A)  |Teade Payables
Totat outstanding dues of micro enterpeises and small entirprises A0 i
Total outstarding dues other than micro enterpeises and soull enlerpoges 11027 wa
Sub-gotal 11037 9790
W) |Other payables
Totsl cusrstanding dwes of rmucro enterpnses and small epterpaises 138 18
[Total culatanding duses ather than micro onlerprees and small enterprises 452 Had
Sed-total 8.90 152
Total (A+B) 17.27 109 42




S —————— —
20 Debt Securities
The Company has categorised all debt securities at amortised cost in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
(€ Loting
Pasticulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024
Face Valoe Amartised Cost Face Value Amartised Cost
(A) |Secured Long-Term Debt Securities
() | Institutional Bands - . 195500 2452 46
(i) | MEC Capltal Gain Tax Exemption Bonds 43,489.85 44,534.24 41,0110.8) 42,5371
(i) | Tax Fres Bonds 8,953.27 9,100.45 8.953.27 9,279 K2
{iv) | Bond Application Money pending allotment 210.21 210,07 1,245 41 124457
Sub-total (A) 52,653.33 53,844.76 53,264.48 55,1256
(B) | Unsecured Long-Term Debt Securities
() | Institutionsl Bonds 1,97,38129 2,04,197.43 172.275.29 178,093 90
(i) | Infrastructure Bonds 3% 9.05 3.96 932
(is) | Zero Coupon Bonds 275384 274792 - 2
(W} | Forelgn Currency Bonds 28,180.23 28,153.08 32,963.75 SZLHAT AL
Sab-total (B) 2,28,319.32 2,35,108.39 2,05,243.00 2,10,950.68
(C) ! Unsecured Short-Term Debt Securities
() | Commarcial Paper . - - .
Sub-total (C) - . - .
Total - Debt Securition (A¢ ,80,.972 68 2.88.953.18 .48 2,66,063.24
Debt rities kssued in/ outside India
(i) | Debt Securities in India 2,52792.42 2,60,800.04 2,25543.73 2,33,215.78
(i) [ Debt Securities outside India 28,180.23 28,153.09 32,963.75 32,847.46
Total - Debt Securities 2,80,972.85 2,88,553.15 2,58,507.44 2.66,063.24
Refer Note No, 21.2 for reconciliation between the figure represented in Face Value and Amortlsed Cost
21 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
The Company has categorised all borrowings {other than debdt securities) al Amartised Cost in accordance with the requirements of lnd
AS109,
__(inCrirgy)
Particulars As at 31-12-2029 As at 31-03-2024
Principal Ofs | Amertised Cost Principal Ofs Amortised Cost
(A) | Unsecured Long-Term Borrowings
() | Term Loans from Banks 48,377,685 48,560.77 50,612.28 50,6200 49
(i) | Term Loans from Finanaal [nstitutions 1,550.00 4,550.00 8,050.00 B072.29
(43} | Term Loan in Foreign Currency H8.000.01 87,794.17 67,205.64 66,772.3%
(iv) | Teen Loans from Govemment of India (NS5F) 10,000.00 10,122.31 10,000.00 10,325.12
Sub-total (A) 1,50,927.56 1,51,027,25 1,35,867.92 1,35,790.28
(B) | Unsecured Short-Term Borrowings
(i) | FCNR (B} Loans 42594 42,E86.95 25,138.67 2515129
(ii) | Short Term Loans/ Loans repayable on demand from Banks 7,52600 7,537 68 10,875.94 1088304
(idi) | Overdraflts/ Cash Credit repayabie co demand from Banks a2 ja2 267.44 26744
Sub-total (B) 50,408.36 50,427.85 36,282.05 353n.77
{Total - Bommlsp (other than Debt Securities) (A ta B) 2,01,33622 2,01,455.10 1,72,149.97 1,72,092.05
| Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) iV outside India
(i) | Barrowings bn [ncia 11333621 1,13,66093 1,04,944.33 1,05,319.67
(i) | Barrowings outside India 85,00001 87.794.17 67,205.564 06,772.38
otal - Borrowings {other than Debt Sccurities) 2,01,336.22 2,01,455.10 1,72,148.97 1,72,092.05

Please refer Note No. 21.2 for veconciluation betioen It figure represented in Face Value and Amortised Cost

) .
r /
4
LR .



22 Subordinated Liabilities
The Company has categorised all subordinated habilities at amortised cost i accordance with the requirements of Tnd AS (W
(2 i Crones)
Particulars Ay at 31-12-2024 As al 31-03-2024
Face Value Amertised Cost Face Value Amontised Comt
(1) [175th Series - Subordinate Tier-1] Bonds - 215120 225709 2151. 2% 24191 95
8.97'% Redeemable at par on 28.03.2029
{li) |199th Series - Subordinate Tier-ll Bonds - 1,99950 2,025.23 1.999.50 2041 b1
7.9% Redeemable at par on 15.06.2030
() |222nd Series - Perpetual Tier-I Bonds - 2,000.00 2,105.17 Z.000.04) 2,145.28
7.96% with call cption on 30.04. 2033 and on anmal anniversary
date thereafter
(lv) [226th Series - Perpetual Tier-] Boods - 1,0%0.00 L1104 1,090,00 11233
8.00% with call option on 20.09.2033 and on annual anniversary
Total - Subordinated Liabilities 7,240.70 7,496.53 7,240.70 7412.21
Subordinated Liabilities In/ outside India
(i) | Borrowings in India 7.25070 745853 7.240.70 741221
{ii) | Borrowings outside India - - - -
Total - Subordinated Lisbilities 7,498,531 7,240.70 741221




(A}
(8)

(=}
(D)

(E)
(F)

2

25

(A)

(8)

Other Financial Liabilities
(210 Crones)
Particulars As at 31-12-2024 As at 31-03-2024
Unpaid Dividends 758 119272
Unpaid Principal & Interest on Bonds
Matured Bonds & Interest Accrued thereon 24 81 2242
« Intorest on Bonds 1489 10582
Sub-total (B) 43.70 32
Advance received towards variation margin 9.556.32 4,638 81
!lmds Received from Government of India for Disbursement as 98,250.12 aK 251 73
Subsidy/ Grant (cumulative)
Add: Interest on such funds (net of refund) 24.63 2461
Less: Disbursed to Beneficiariey (cumalative) (97,931.56)| (99,202 39
Undisbursed Funds to be disbursed as Subsidy/ Grant 34319 7395
Payables towards Bonds Fuily serviced by Government of India 24,653.15 20,382,400
Other Liakbilities 1,732.26 161977
Total (A to F) 36,336.30 31,940.58
Current tax liabilities (net)
(¥ m Crures)
Particulars As at 31-12.2024 As at 31.03-2024
Trovision for Income Tax - 3283 K5
Less: Advance Income-tax & TDS - (3217 34)
urrent tax liabilities (Net) - 6651
Provisions
(2 n S’lzﬂ'h!‘
Particulars As at 31122024 As at 31.03-2024
Provisions for
Employee Benefits
Gratuicy 258 013
Eamed Leave Liability 3454 3381
Medical Leave Liability 2180 2152
Settlement Allowance 240 240
Economic Rehabilitation Scheme 597 492
Long Service Award 4% 451
Incentive 372 3696
Others 0.80 107
Swh-total (A} 106.71 105.32
Others
Expected Credit Loss on Letters of Comfort 17.63 2m
Sub-roral (8) 17.63 3202
Total {A+B) 124,34 137.4
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Onther Intormation - Imtegrated Filing (Financial) for the quarter and nive tnunths

ended December 31, 2024,

(In cccordarce with the SERT circular no. SESEAHN CRDN CRDFal 27 CIR A FF 3024 7 [ 85 dused
Edecernber 11, 2004 aned wihey applicable Civculas)

SL Particolars Bemarks
No.
L. Statement on deviation or variaron for proceeds | No deviation during the
af public issue. right issuc, preferennal issue, | reporting penicd.
qualified institutions placement cic.
2, Disctosure of vutstanding default on doans and | No  default durng  the
dcbt securities reponing penod.
3. Format for disclusure of related party mransaction
(applicable only for balf yearly filings ie 2™ and
o | 4hguarter) Not Applicable for  the
d. Fatement on imnpact of audit qualifications {for | reporting period.
audit report with modified opinion} submitted
dlong with annual audited Anancial resulks -
(Standalone and Consolidated  separatcly)
{appitcable only for annvai filing ie 4" quarter)
ED (Finance)
Place : Delhi

Date : Febrwary §, 2025
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